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November 30, 2015 
 
Mr. Michael Elliott 
Regulatory Division 
CENAE-R-PEB 
U.S. Army Corp of Engineers 
Regulatory Division 
696 Virginia Road  
Concord, MA  
01742-2751 
 
Re:  General Permit Compliance Certification 

Permit Number: NAE-2013-2359 
Former Gorham Manufacturing Facility 

 Providence, Rhode Island  
   
Dear Mr. Elliott, 
 
Amec Foster Wheeler Environmental & Infrastructure, Inc (Amec Foster Wheeler) is submitting 
this completed Compliance Certification form on behalf of the Permittee, Textron, Inc., for the 
above referenced project.  The Mashapaug Inner Cove sediment remediation and restoration 
project was completed on October 26, 2015.  A Remedial Action Completion Report is currently 
being prepared in accordance with the Rhode Island Remediation Regulations for the 
remediation of the Parcel C and Phase III Area cap and Phase II Mashapaug Inner Cove 
sediment remediation.  A copy of this report will be provided electronically to the United States 
Army Corps of Engineers. 
 
Remedial Construction Completed: The remedial construction at the former Gorham site 
included the installation of a turbidity curtain and temporary Port-A-Dam within the Mashapaug 
Outer Cove on August 5, 2015.  The water was pumped out (Dewatering Plan) and a Wildlife 
Mitigation Plan implemented.  Construction dewatering continued in isolated work areas to 
support the sediment removal and capping.  Water was pumped to a frac tank and then pumped 
to an infiltration gallery located at the northern end of the Phase III Area near Mashapaug Pond.  
Timber mats were placed on the sediment to provide equipment access for sediment removal.  
The top one to two feet of sediment was removed, dewatered, stabilized and then placed on the 
Phase III Area upland and is currently being capped.  The remaining sediment within the Inner 
Cove was then covered with one foot of imported organic soil.  Both the perimeter and fringe 
wetlands along the edge of the Inner Cove were capped with imported organic soil, planted with 
approved wetland plants and seeded with perimeter and fringe wetland grass seed.  On October 
24, 2015, the construction dewatering pumps were removed and the groundwater allowed to 
slowly fill the Inner Cove over the two-day weekend to a one-foot depth.  On Monday, October 
26, 2015 the Port-A-Dam was removed to slowly allow water into the Inner Cove without 
disturbing the soil cover over the sediment.  The removal of the Port-A-Dam was completed on 
October 26, 2015 and the water level restored to its’ original condition prior to the remediation 
being initiated.   
 
Future Activities: Textron and Amec Foster Wheeler have been monitoring the Inner Cove and 
adjacent wetlands since this completion.  The side slopes above the perimeter and fringe 
wetlands were disturbed during the restoration of the wetlands and remediation of the Inner 
Cove.  These disturbed areas were loamed and seeded on November 4, 2015.  We continue to 
monitor the grass growth and surface stabilization.  Because these areas have not yet achieved 



80% surface stabilization, the turbidity curtain will remain in place until the spring 2016.  Textron 
and Amec Foster Wheeler will continue to inspect the upland areas throughout the winter and 
early spring for potential impacts from storm events and will work with the contractor, Charter, to 
restore/stabilize the ground surface, pending overseeding in the early spring 2016.  Once the 
upland surface has met the stabilization requirements the turbidity curtain will be removed from 
the Outer Cove.  We will also conduct semi-annual inspections of the wetland planting and 
restoration.  Additional planting or seeding will be conducted in the spring 2016, if necessary, by 
Charter. 
 
 
If you have any questions regarding this Completion Certification or require additional information, 
please contact Greg Simpson at Textron (401) 457-2635 or me at (978) 392-5327. 

Sincerely, 

    
 
David E. Heislein      Annette R. McLean 
Senior Project Manager     Project Scientist 
 
Enclosures: 

Attachment – Completion Certification dated November 24, 2015 
 

cc:  Greg Simpson, Textron (electronic) 
Joe Martella, RIDEM (electronic) 
 




























